
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

May 06, 2014 9:00 a.m. 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jan Moore 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Travis Chance 
 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations: 
 
A) Mayor to recognize the Finance Department for receiving the Distinguished Budget 

Award for FY 2014. 
B) Director of DSDA Allen Muldrew would like to make an announcement regarding 

the TAD Program. 
 

4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 
 

5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
A) Approval of Minutes 

a) 04-14-2014 Budget Retreat Minutes 
b) 04-15-2014 Council Minutes 
c) 04-15-2014 Executive Session Minutes 
 

B) Notification of alcohol license application: 
a)  Licensee:  James Bennett Lanier Jr 
     DBA:  Locos Grill & Pub 
     Location:  91 Briarwood Lane 
     Type of Alcohol License:  Pouring Beer, Wine & Liquor 
     Type of Business:  Restaurant 
 

C) Notification of alcohol license application: 
a)  Licensee:  Kalayanee Raiwa 
     DBA:  Coconut Thai Cuisine 
     Location:  7 College Plaza 
     Type of Alcohol License:  Pouring Beer, Wine & Liquor 
     Type of Business:  Restaurant 
 

D) Notification of alcohol license application: 
a) Licensee:  Robert Paul Lehman 
    DBA:  Carmike 12 
    Location:  991 Lovett Road 
    Type of Alcohol License:  Pouring Beer, Wine & Liquor 
   Type of Business:  Restaurant 
 



 
 

E) Consideration of a Motion to approve the destruction of 230 boxes of records that 
have met the Georgia State Retention Schedule 

 
6. Public Hearing regarding the 2014 Update to the City of Statesboro Comprehensive 

Master Plan. 
 

7. Consideration of a Motion to approve a salary increase from Step A to Step C for three 
(3) certified Waste Water Operators. 
 

8. Motion to consider request by Armstrong Development requesting that the Mayor submit 
application on behalf of the City of Statesboro to the Georgia Department of 
Transportation for a median cut in the Veterans Memorial Parkway between Jones Mill 
Road and Highway 80/ Northside Drive. 
 

9. Consideration of a Motion to award an engineering contract to Sapp Engineering for the 
Natural Gas Expansion Project at US 301 and I-16. 
 

10. Request and Consideration for a Motion in support of the City of Statesboro seeking a 
signal and encroachment permit from the Georgia Department of Transportation for 
installation at Brampton Avenue and Fair Road and authorization for the Mayor to 
execute a reimbursement agreement in an amount not to exceed $110,000 for cost of said 
signal design and construction. 

 
11. Other Business from City Council 

 
12. Public Comments (General) 

A) Mr. Thomas Ward with the Gateway Development Corporation request a Public 
Presentation regarding the proposed Newport Trace Development to be located on 
Lester Road and its submission of application to the Georgia Department of 
Community Affairs for Low Income Housing Tax Credit and/or HOME Investment 
Partnership Program funding.  
 

B) Mr. Marshall Ransom would like to present Council with a petition from the residents 
of Foxlake Drive requesting the homes to be connected to the City’s water/sewer 
system. 
 

13. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” 
“Real Estate” and/or  “Potential Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 
 

14. Consideration of a Motion to approve the employment contract between the Mayor and 
City Council and the City Attorney.  

 
15. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
CITY COUNCIL BUDGET RETREAT MINUTES 

APRIL 14th, 2014 

 
 
A City Council Budget Retreat was held on April 14th, 2014 at 9:00 am in the City Hall Council 
Chambers at 50 East Main St. Statesboro, Georgia.  Present was Mayor Jan Moore, 
Councilmembers: Will Britt, Phil Boyum, Gary Lewis, Travis Chance and John Riggs. Also 
present was  City Manager Frank Parker, City Clerk Sue Starling, City Attorney Alvin Leaphart, 
City Engineer Robert Cheshire and Director of Community Development Mandi Cody.   
 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Jan Moore.   
 
Other Department Heads present were: 
Director of Water/Wastewater Wayne Johnson, Assistant Director Water/Wastewater Van 
Collins, Director of Public Safety Wendell Turner, Gas Superintendent Steve Hotchkiss, Senior 
Assistant City Engineer Jason Boyles, Director of Human Resource Jeff Grant, Director of 
Purchasing Darren Prather and Finance Director Cindy West. 
 
Also present were other City employees as well as the Statesboro Herald news media. 
 
The meeting consisted of the department heads giving an overview of their budget for FY 2015 
which included their CIP Projects as well as goals and priorities, 2014 highlights, budget 
assumptions and other proposals by the City Manager. Some of the topics were the installation of 
the fiber optic infrastructure to GSU, risk management certification and projects using SPLOST 
funds. The meeting ended with the discussion of goals and priorities along with a lengthy 
discussion of a proposed salary increase for employees for the Fiscal Year 2015 by the Mayor 
and Council Members.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:30 p.m. 
 
There was no action taken at this meeting. 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Council Minutes 

April 15, 2014 

 
A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on April 15, 2014 at 5:15 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jan J. Moore, Council Members: Will Britt, 
Phil Boyum, Gary Lewis and Travis Chance.  Also present were City Manager Frank Parker, 
City Clerk Sue Starling, City Attorney Alvin Leaphart, City Engineer Robert Cheshire and 
Director of Community Development Mandi Cody. Absent was Councilman John Riggs 
 
The meeting was called to Order by Mayor Jan Moore. 
The Invocation was given by Reverend Lee Charles and Pledge of Allegiance was led by 
Councilman Gary Lewis. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt recognized Professor Tom Caiazzo along with his students from the 
American Government class at Georgia Southern University. 
 
Recognitions/Public Presentations: 

A) Director of DSDA Allen Muldrew and Keep Bulloch Beautiful Kelly 
Collingsworth will update Council on the plans for “Spring into Statesboro” 
including the “Great American Cleanup” 

Director of DSDA Allen Muldrew and Keep Bulloch Beautiful Kelly Collingsworth updated 
Council on the upcoming events. Kelly also announced that she would be leaving Keep Bulloch 
Beautiful to pursue another employment opportunity. 
 
Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 04-01-2014 Council Minutes 
b) 04-01-2014 Executive Session Minutes 
 

B)  Notification of alcohol license application: 
a)  Licensee:  Pallavi Patel 

DBA:  K and J Food Mart 
Location:  123 West Main Street 
Type of Alcohol License:  Packaged Beer & Wine 
Type of Business:  Convenience Store 
 

C) Consideration of a Motion to approve “Massage Therapy” 
a) Karla Swartz LMT 

 
 



 
 

D) Consideration of a Motion to approve Special Event Permit 
a) Georgia Southern University – Wine and Beer Tasting Benefit 

 
E) Consideration of a  Motion to Approve Third Amendment to Lease Agreement 

with New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC for use of portion of the Paulson 
Stadium Water Tank.  
 

F) Consideration of a  Motion to Approve Third Amendment to Lease Agreement 
with New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC for use of portion of the Howard 
Lumber Company Water Tank. 

 
G) Consideration of a Motion to negotiate an engineering contract to SAPP 

Engineering for the design of a high pressure natural gas line to be located at the 
US 301 and I-16 Industrial Park. 

 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve the 
consent agenda in its entirety. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 

 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve Task Order No. 2 of Professional Services 
Agreement with Ecological Planning Group in the amount of $75,870.00 to assist the City 
with the development of Comprehensive Storm Water Management Program. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to approve Task 
Order No. 2 of Professional Services Agreement with Ecological Planning Group in the amount 
of $75,870.00 to assist the City with the development of Comprehensive Storm Water 
Management Program. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to authorize Mayor to enter into franchise agreement on behalf 
of the City of Statesboro with Pavlov Media 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to enter into the   
franchise agreement with Campus Communications Group not to be substantially different from 
what is presented in the packet today. 
 
Consideration of a motion for the sole source purchase under the state purchasing contract 
of Motorola radios for Engineering and Public Works not to exceed $25,000. 
 
Councilman Lewis made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to approve the sole source 
purchase under the state purchasing contract of Motorola radios for Engineering and Public 
Works not to exceed $25,000. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 
 



 
 

Consideration of a Motion to reject bids for a vacuum excavator based on specifications not 
being met by all submitted bids 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve the 
motion to reject bids for a vacuum excavator based on specifications not being met by all 
submitted bids. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to award a contract to purchase two (2) bi-fuel CNG trucks to 
Wade Ford in the amount of $26,761 each for a total of $53,522.00. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to award a contract to 
purchase two (2) bi-fuel CNG trucks to Wade Ford in the amount of $26,761 each for a total of 
$53,522.00. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Other Business from City Council 
 
Purchasing Agent Darren Prather asked Council for a motion to approve the new property and 
casual coverage for the City of Statesboro as outlined by Glen Davis and will go into effect on 
May 1st, 2014. 

Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve the new 
property and casual coverage for the City of Statesboro as outlined by Glen Davis and will go 
into effect on May 1st, 2014. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
City Manager Frank Parker asked Council to approve Resolution 2014-06: A Resolution to 
appoint Steve Hotchkiss to serve as the City’s voting delegate on the Municipal Gas Authority of 
Georgia’s Election Committee and City Manager Frank Parker is appointed as alternate voting 
delegate. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to approve 
Resolution 2014-06: A Resolution to appoint Steve Hotchkiss to serve as the City’s voting 
delegate on the Municipal Gas Authority of Georgia’s Election Committee and City Manager 
Frank Parker is appointed as alternate voting delegate. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Lewis and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
At 6:00 pm Council Chance made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to enter into 
an Executive Session for Personnel Matters. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Lewis and Chance voted 
in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
At 6:21 pm Mayor Moore asked for a motion to close the Executive Session and called the 
regular session back to order. Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Will Britt to close the Executive Session.  Councilman Britt, Boyum, Lewis and Chance voted in 
favor of the motion.  The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. The Mayor stated there was not action 
taken. 



 
 

Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to authorize City 
Manager Frank Parker to negotiate a new contract with City Attorney Alvin Leaphart and bring a 
recommendation back to Council. 

Public Comments (General) None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to adjourn. 
Councilman Britt, Boyum, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:24 pm. 
 

 
  
 
 
 









 

 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Frank Parker,City Manager 

Sue Starling, City Clerk 
J. Alvin Leaphart, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum 
John C. Riggs 
William P. Britt 
Travis L. Chance 
Gary L. Lewis 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

 
MEMORANDIUM  

      
      
 
To: Mayor and Council 
 
From: Sue Starling, City Clerk 
 
Date: April 25, 2014 
 
RE: Destruction of Records 
 
 
 
The Records Department is prepared to move forward with the destruction of the records that 
have met the retention schedule set by the State of Georgia.  The list is attached for your 
consideration to approve their destruction. 
 
  
 
 
  
       
 
  
 


































	05-06-2014 Council Agenda
	04-14-2014 council budget retreat minutes
	04-15-2014 Council minutes
	05-2014 alcohol application LOCOS
	05-2014 Alcohol application COCONUT THA
	05-2014 Alcohol application CARMIKE
	05-2014 memo records destruction
	05-2014 RECORDS DESTRUCTION
	05-2014 Armstrong Development
	05-2014 Sapp Engineering
	05-2014 Newport Trace Apts

